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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20580 
 
 
 
Office of the Director 
Bureau of Competition 
 

November 7, 2023 
 
By Federal Express 
 
Teva Branded Pharmaceutical 
Products R&D, Inc.  
Attn: Legal Counsel 
c/o Corporate Creations Network Inc. 
3411 Silverside Road 
Tatnall Building, Ste. 104 
Wilmington, New Castle, DE 19810 
 

 

Re:  Improper Orange Book-Listed Patents for QVAR 40, ProAir HFA, ProAir 
DigiHaler 

 
Dear Teva Counsel: 
 
 On September 14, 2023, the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”) issued a Statement 
Concerning Brand Drug Manufacturers’ Improper Listing of Patents in the Orange Book.1 The 
Policy Statement, a copy of which is appended to this letter, highlights the negative impacts that 
improper Orange Book patent listings may have on drug competition and notifies market 
participants “that the FTC intends to scrutinize [such] improper listings as unfair methods of 
competition in violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act.”2 
 

This letter is to inform you that we believe certain patents have been improperly or 
inaccurately listed in the Orange Book with regard to Teva Branded Pharmaceutical Products 
R&D, Inc’s products and that we have availed ourselves of the FDA’s regulatory process and 
submitted patent listing dispute communications to the FDA regarding the patents listed below:3 

 
 
 

 
1 Federal Trade Commission, Statement Concerning Brand Drug Manufacturers’ Improper Listing of Patents in the 
Orange Book (Sept. 14, 2023), FTC Policy Statement Concerning Brand Drug Manufacturers' Improper Listing of 
Patents in Orange Book (hereinafter “Policy Statement”).  
2 Policy Statement at 1.  
3 The Orange Book listings identified as improper in this chart should not be read as an exhaustive list of every 
patent that your company may have improperly submitted. Indeed, your firm bears the burden of listing patents in 
the Orange Book accurately and in accordance with all relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.   
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QVAR 40 

9463289 DP 

9808587 DP 

10022509 DP 

10022510 DP 

10086156 DP 

10561808 DP 

10695512 DP 

11395889 DP 

 
As the Policy Statement explains, patents improperly listed in the Orange Book may 

delay lower-cost generic drug competition. By listing their patents in the Orange Book, brand 
drug companies may benefit from an automatic, 30-month stay of FDA approval of competing 
generic drug applications.4 In addition to delays resulting from such a stay of approval, the costs 
associated with litigating improperly listed patents may disincentivize investments in developing 
generic drugs, which risks delaying or thwarting competitive entry. The Supreme Court 
recognizes that improper Orange Book listings have prevented or delayed generic drug entry 
since at least the 1990s.5 Even brief delays in generic competition can reduce patient access to 
more affordable alternatives and increase costs across the entire health care system.6 
 

For decades, the FTC has

https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000546&cite=21USCAS355&originatingDoc=I0c04672a43f711eb89c8cbfb7ddaf7df&refType=RB&originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&ppcid=8b0e3b5f69ad40b18de2c31a2fa3b712&contextData=(sc.History*oc.Search)#co_pp_83fb0000a4d76
https://www.ftc.gov/system/files/ftc_gov/pdf/P163500JazzPharmaAmicusBrief.pdf
https://www.ftc.gov/sites/default/files/documents/amicus_briefs/re-buspirone-antitrust-litigation/buspirone.pdf.f



